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DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT
)

OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 12-1888 PO




)

LARRY J. DAVIS,

)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Larry J. Davis is subject to discipline because he committed criminal offenses.
Procedure


On October 22, 2012, the Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Davis.  Davis was served with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on October 30, 2012.  He did not file an answer.

We held a hearing on March 18, 2012.  Assistant Attorney General Ron Dreisilker represented the Director.  Neither Davis nor anyone representing him appeared.  The case became ready for our decision on the same date, when the transcript was filed.

We make our findings of fact from the Director’s affidavit of licensure and the certified copies of records from the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri, submitted by the Director and admitted into evidence at the hearing.  
Findings of Fact

1. David holds a peace officer license issued by the Director that was current and active at all relevant times.
2. At all relevant times Davis was an officer with the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department (“SLMPD”).  

3. Davis and his brother, Linus Davis (“Linus”), conspired to seize, confiscate, and divert packages containing marijuana that were received by package delivery companies for delivery at their St. Louis branch facilities, and then to distribute and sell the marijuana for their personal gain.

4. Davis visited package delivery company branch facilities in his official capacity as a police officer and seized packages suspected of containing marijuana.

5. Instead of taking the packages to the SLMPD or the SLMPD laboratory, Davis took the packages to his personal residence.  He and Linus then opened the packages, removed the marijuana, and later distributed and sold it for their own personal gain.
6. Davis and Linus did this on January 10, 2012, and on other occasions.

7. On April 23, 2012, Davis pled guilty in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri, to conspiracy to possess with intent to distribute marijuana, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 846 and 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(D), and possession with intent to distribute marijuana, in violation of § 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) and 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(D).

8. On October 15, 2012, Davis was sentenced to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons for a term of 57 months. 

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear this case.  Section 590.080.2.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Davis has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).

The Director alleges that there is cause for discipline under § 590.080: 
1.  The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:

*   *   *

(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed;

(3)  Has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or a reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person[.]
Criminal Offenses
Davis pled guilty to two federal offenses -- conspiracy to possess with intent to distribute marijuana, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 846 and 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(D), and possession with intent to distribute marijuana, in violation of § 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) and 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(D). – and was sentenced to prison for the crimes. He is therefore estopped from denying that he committed those offenses under Carr v. Holt, 134 S.W.3d 647, 649 (Mo. App., E.D. 2004) (citing James v. Paul, 49 S.W.3d 678, 682-83 (Mo. banc 2001)), and he made no attempt to do so.   He is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(2).
 

 Act Involving Moral Turpitude


The Director asserts that Davis may be disciplined under § 590.080.1(3) for committing an act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude.  As defined by a court when construing the term in the context of 42 U.S.C. § 1983:

“The traditional definition of acting under color of state law requires that the defendant in a § 1983 action have exercised power ‘possessed by virtue of state law and made possible only because the wrongdoer is clothed with the authority of state law.’” . . .  At the same time, however, the Supreme Court has made clear that even the “[m]isuse of power” possessed by virtue of state law is action taken “under color of state law.” . . .  Thus, “under ‘color’ of law” means “under ‘pretense’ of law,” and “[a]cts of officers who undertake to perform their official duties are included whether they hew to the line of their authority or overstep it.”
Dossett v. First State Bank, 399 F.3d 940, 949 (8th Cir. 2005).
The entire scheme by which Davis came into possession of the marijuana was made possible by the fact that he was a police officer and acted as such when he appropriated the packages containing the marijuana for his own personal gain.  He acted under color of law.


Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty 

between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).  We agree that Davis’ conduct involved moral turpitude.
  His actions were corrupt, dishonest, and involved an egregious abuse of power.  Furthermore, “[c]ourts invariably find moral turpitude in the violation of narcotic laws.” Id.  Compare In re Shunk (possession of narcotics is crime of moral turpitude justifying attorney disbarment or other discipline).  Davis is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(3).  

Summary

There is cause for discipline under § 590.080.1(2) and (3).  

SO ORDERED on March   , 2013.


________________________________



KAREN A. WINN


Commissioner
	� Statutory citations are to the RSMo Supp. 2012 unless otherwise indicated.


	�In Brehe v. Missouri Dep’t of Elementary and Secondary Education, 213 S.W.3d 720 (Mo. App., W.D. 2007), a case that involved discipline of a teacher’s certificate under § 168.071 for committing a crime involving moral turpitude, the court referred to three classifications of crimes, some of which necessarily involve moral turpitude and some of which do not.  The egregious circumstances of Davis’ crimes make it unnecessary to determine which category they fall into, as his actions clearly involved moral turpitude.
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